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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 30 September 2010

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited,
incorporating the financial statements and auditors’ report, for the year ended 30 September 2010.

With the unanimous agreement of all shareholders, the Company has taken advantage of the reporting
concessions avaliable to it under Section 211(3} of the Companies Act 1993,

The Board of Directors of TOWER Life (N.2.) Limited authorised these financial statements presented
on pages 3 to 40 for issue on 23 December 2010.

For and on behalf of the board:

, A

Director “ Birector 4
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 September 2010

Premium revenue from insurance coniracts
Less: Outwards reinsurance expanse

Net premium revenue

Investment revenue

Net operating revenue

Claims expense

Less: Reinsurance recoveries revenue

Net claims expense

Change In life insurance contract liabliities

Change In life investment contract liabliiities

Policy maintenance costs - life insurance contracts
Policy meintenance costs - life investment contracts
FuturePlan debenture finance costs

Net clsims and operating expenses

Financing costs
Interest expense

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense
Profit from operations

Note

W

17
17
6a
6b

6c

Total profit and comprehensive income for the year attributed to

shareholders

2010 2009
$000 $000
31,193 31,720
(10,205) (8,188)
20,988 23,504
118,083 30,206
139,071 53,740
61,541 56,246
(7,408) (6,782)
54,133 50,464
25,740 {18,280)
2,167 (117)
10,332 11,437
206 307
2,275 1,268
94,853 45,089
7,850 .
36,368 8,651
31,610 4,709
4,758 3,942
4,758 3,842

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
As st 30 September 2010

Asseots

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial assets

intercompany receivables

Prepaid tax asset

Policyhoider loans

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts
Deferred tax asset

Total assets

Liabilitles

Trade and other payables
intercompany payables
Derivgtive financial liabilitles
Provisions

Other llabllities

Taxation payable

Deferred tax liability

Life insurance contract liabilities
Life investment contract liabilities

Total liablilities
Net assets

Equity
Confributed equity
Retained earnings

Total equity

The Directors authorised these financlal statements for issue on 23 December 2010.

Director U

15
16

2010 2009
$000 $000
13,617 2,739
32,088 32,626
655,396 697,518
63,019 46,045
2,649 8,732
23,476 34,700
5,610 5,866
10,716 9,116
21 17,620
806,592 849,971
10,621 8,487
31,077 3,733
1,652 20,634
181 -
- 22,745
2,212 28,654
3,806 -
699,504 702,821
31,759 32,651
780,812 818,725
25,780 30,246
10,000 10,000
15,760 20,246
25,780 30,246

L

Director

7

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2010

Year ended 30 September 2010
At the beginning of the year

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Total comprehensivs Income

Transactions with shareholders
Dividends paid
Total transactions with shareholders

At the end of the year

Year ended 30 September 2009
At the beginning of the year

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

Transactions with shareholders
Dividends paid
Total transactions with shareholders

At the end of the year

The Statement of Changes In Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Attributed to shareholders
Share capital  Retained earnings Total
$000 $000 $000
10,000 20,246 30,246
- 4,758 4,758
- 4,758 4,758
- (9.224) (9,224)
- (9,224) (9.224)
10,000 15,7 25,780
10,000 16,304 26,304
- 3,942 3,942
- 3,942 3,942
10,000 20,246 30,246

Page §
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Premium revenue
Reinsurance revenue
Interest recelved
Dividends received
Investment income
Payments to policyholders
Relnsurance payments
Payments to suppliers and employees
interest paid
Net cash outflow from operating activities 21

GCash flows from investing activitles
Net (purchase) / sale of investments

Net cash inflow from investing activities'

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of Futureplan debenture
Payment of dividends

Net cash (outfiowYinflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2010 2009
_$000 $000
33,716 44,683
5,518 4,459
58,389 32,521
2,104 3,855
(1,427) -
{93,493) {75,640)
(10,762) {7,373)
(6,300) (9,549)
(7,850) .
{20,016) (7,044)
65,139 8,344
65,139 8,344
(25,021) -
(8,224) -
{34,245) -
10,878 1,300
2,739 1,430
13,617 A

The statements of cash fiows presents the net changes in cash flow for financlal assets. TOWER considers that knowledge of gross receipts
and payments is not essentlal to understanding certain activities of TOWER and It is considered acceptable to report only the net changes In
cash flow for these kems. This ks based on the fact that elther the tumover of these ems is quick, the amounts are large, end the maturities

are short.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

GENERAL. INFORMATION

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Directors on 23 December 2010.
TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited ("the Company"} is a New Zealand incorporated life insurance company, domiciled in New
Zealand and an issuer in terms of the Securities Act 1978.

The address of its registered office is:
Level 11
TOWER Centre
22 Fanshawe Street
Auckiand Central
Now Zealand

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are for the Company as a separate legal entity. The Company is designated as a profit-
oriented entity for financial reporting purposes.

This financial report has been prepared in accordance with the New Zealand Companies Act 1983 and the Financlal
Reporting Act 1993,

The principal activity of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Ltd is the provision of life insurance. The Company operates in New Zealand.
The financial report of the Company has been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP). It complies with New Zealand Equivalents to intemational Reporling Standards (NZ IFRS) and other
applicable financial reporting standards, as appropriate for profit-oriented entities.

Compliance with International Financlel Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The consolidated financial statements and notes of TOWER Limited comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with any exceptions noted in the accounting policies
below.

PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING CONDUCT OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

The life insurance operations of the Comparny comprise the selling and administration of contracts which are classifled as
either life insurance contracts or life investment contracts. Contracts that include both investment and insurance elements
are separated into these two elements and reported accordingly.

Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk Is defined as significant if, and
only if, an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios
that lack commercial substance. Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence
of a specified event such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or iliness. The insured benefit is either not linked,
or only partly linked, to the market value of the investments held by the life insurer, and the financial risks are substantially
borne by the lifa insurer. Any products that do not meet the definition of a life insurance contract are classified as life
investment contracts.

Life investment contracts include investment-linked contracts where the benefit amount is directly linked to the market
value of the investments held. While the underlying assets are registered in the name of the life insurer and the Investment-
linked policy owner has no direct access to the spacific assets, the contractual arrangements are such that the investment-
linked policy owner bears the risks and rewards of the investment performance. The Iife insurer derives fee income from
the administration of investment-linked policies.

Participating policyowner benefits, both vested and unvested, are treated as expenses when incurred and liabilites until
paid.

Page 7
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING CONDUCT OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS {(cont.)

For the purposes of this financial report, holders of life insurance and life investment contracts are referred to as
policyholders.

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Premium revenue

Life Insurance contracts

Premiums on life insurance business are separated into their revenue and deposit components. Only those amounts
earned by providing services and bearing risks are treated as revenue. Other premium amounts recelved are similar to
deposils and are recognised as an increase in policy liabilities. Where it is not practicable to split out the two components
ali premiums have been recognised as revenue. Where policies provide for the payment of amounts of premiums on
specific dus dates, such premiums are recognised as revenue when due. Unpaid premiums are recognised as revenue
only during the days of grace or where secured by the surrender vaiues of the policies concerned. Other premiums are
recoghised as revenue on a cash received basis.

Life investment contracts

Under life investment contracts the Company receives deposits from policyholders and those funds are invested on
behalf of the policyholders. There are no premiums recognised as revenue in respect of these contracts. Amounts
received comprise an origination fee and ongoing management fee or amounts credited directly fo investment contract
liabilities and recognised in the change in value of the investment contract.

{b) Fee and other revenue

Fee revenue on investment contracts and other services provided by the Company is recognised in the period the
services are provided.

{c) Investment revenue
Dividends, property income, interest, reslised gains/losses and unrealised gains/losses on investment assets are brought
to account in the statement of comprehensive income as foliows:

Dividends and distributions
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends are recorded as income at the date

the shares become “ex-dividend".

Property income
Property income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method,

Fair value gains and losses
Fair value gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised through the statement of

comprehensive income.
(d) Ciaims expense

Life insurance contracts

Claims are recognised when the liability to a policyholder under a life Insurance contract has been established or upon
notification of the insured event. Claims are separated into their expense and withdrawal components. Claims on risk
business are treated as an expense and are recognised when a liability to the policyholder is established.

Life investment contracts

There is no claims expense in respect of investment contracts. Surrenders and withdrawals which relate to life
investment contracts are treated as a movement in life investment contract liabllities. Other claim amounts are similar to
withdrawals and as such do not relate to the provision of services or the bearing of risk. Accordingly, they are not
expenses and are freated as movements in life insurance contract liabilities.

¥
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TOWER LIFE {N.2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 Saptember 2010

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

(e) Basls of expense apportionment

All operating expenses in respect of life insurance or life investment contracts have been apportioned between policy
acquisitions, policy maintenance and investment management expenses with regard to the objective when incurring the
expense and the outcome achieved.

The apportionment process is adopted by applying the following methodology:

(i) Expenses that can be directly identifiable and atiributable to a particular ciass of business are not apportioned.

(i) Expenses directly attributable to the participating and non-participating classes of business are apportioned based on
appropriate cost drivers.

(ili) Commission expenses that cannot be aliocated to a class of business, for example volume bonuses, are apportioned
on the basis of new business and renewal commissions of each class, allowing for limits impliad by the basis of adviser
remuneration.

(iv) tnvestment expenses are apportioned to the ciasses of business on the mean balance of assets under management.

(v) Other expenses that cannot be allocated to a particular class of business are apportioned to the classes of business
based on appropriate cost drivers, including number of new policies issued and related premiums, number of new units
issued, mean balances of assets under management, average number of policies in-force and time and activity based
allocations.

{f) Policy acquisition costs

Policy acquisition costs comprise the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business, including commission,
advertising, policy issue and underwriting costs, agency expenses and other sales costs. Acquisition costs are recorded in
the statement of comprehensive income.

The Chief Actuary, in determining the palicyholder liabilities, takes account of the deferral and future recovery of acquisition
costs, resulting in policyholder liabilities being lower and those costs being amortised over the period in which they will be
recoverable.

{(g) Outwards reinsurance

Premiums ceded to reinsurers under insurance contracts held by the Company are recorded as an outwards reinsurance
expense and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of indemnity of the reinsurance
contract,

{(h) Financing costs
Financing costs include interest on internal and external debt (borrowing costs).

(i) Taxation

Current taxation

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable In respect of the taxable profit
or loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax for cument and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid
(or refundable).

Page 9 [PRCWATERHOUS T COPERS



TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Deforred tax

Defeived tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabliities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base of those ltems.

3
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilities setfied, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised If the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of the other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Current and deferred tax balances atiributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity.

Tax consolldation

The Company is part of the TOWER tax consolidated group of which TOWER Limited is the head entity. All members of the
tax consolidated group are jointly and severally Hable for the tax liabilities of the Group.

incorne tax expense
The income tax expense is the tax payable on taxable income for the current period, based on the income tax rate for each
jurisdiction and adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences and unused

tax losses.

GST

All revenues, expenses and certain assets are recognised net of goods and services taxes (GST) except where the GST is

not recoverabie. In these circumstances the GST Is included in the related asset or expense, Recelvables and payables are
reported inclusive of GST. The net GST payable to or recaverable from the tax authorities as at balance date is included as

a receivable or payabie in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statements of cash flows on a net basis {0 the extent that the GST Is not recoverable and has
been included in the expense or asset.

() Forelgn currency

Functional and presentation currency

items inciuded in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary sconomic
environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in New Zealand
dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the Company transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency using the exchange rates in effect at the transaction dates. Monetary items recelvable or payable in a
forelgn currency, including forward exchange contracts, are transiated at reporting date at the closing exchange rate,

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as financial assets held at fair value through profit and loss are
reported as part of their falr value gain or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement or retranslation of monetary items at year end exchange rates are
recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income.

{k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits heid at call with financial institutions and other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less thet are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(1) Recelvables
Receivables including policyholder loans, are recognised initially at fair value, Due to the short term nafture of these assets
the recoverable value, Le. aliowing for doubtful debts, will generally be the fair value.

Page 10
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z)) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

{m) Assets backing insurance businesses

All assets held within the insurance business are assets backing the policy liabilities of the life insurance business.
These assets are managed under the TOWER Limited Group's Risk Management Statement on a fair value basls
and are reported o the Board on this basis. The Company has therefore deemed that these assets should be
measured at fair value through profit or loss wherever the applicable standard aliows.

Fair value is determined as follows:

- Cash assets and bank overdrafts are canrled at face value which approximates fair value;

- Shares, fixed interest securities, options and units in trusts listed on stock exchanges are valued at the quoted
bid price of the instrument at balance sheet date;

~ Unlisted fixed interest securities, are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
1o the yiekds obtainable on comparable traded investments at balance date;

- Unlisted unit trusts are recorded at fund managers' quoted redemption prices; and

- Receivables are carried at book value, which is the bast estimate of fair value, as they are settled within a short
period.

{n) Derivative and other financlal instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All purchases and sales of financial assets classifed as fair value through profit or loss that require delivery within
the timeframe established by regulation or market convention ("regular way" purchases and sales) are recognised
at trade date, which is the date the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets. Loans and receivables are
recognised at settiement date, which is the date that the assets are delivered or received.

{i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
on an active market, The Company's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables, policyholder
loans and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. Loans and recelvables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any impairment.

{ii} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of financial assets that are either held for trading or
designated on initial recognition &t fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classifed in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Designation by
management takes place when it is ngcessary to eliminate or significantly reduce measurement or recognition
inconsistencies or if related financial assets or liabilities are managed and evaiuated on a fair value basis.

Financlel assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognised In the statement of comprehensive Income. The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income Includes any dividend or interest eamned on the financial assets.

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading uniess they are designated as hedges. All derivatives entered
into by the Company are classified as held for trading as the Company does not apply hedge accounting.

(iH) Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial assets and llabliities that are measured at fair value is determined based
on available market prices or using appropriate valuation methods. Financial instruments carried at fair value are
categorised into the three level fair value hierarchy based on significance of inputs used in the measurement. Lovel
1 includes inputs of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets on liablilties. Level 2 includes inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly. Level 3 includes inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

(o) Impairment of assets

(i) impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses annually whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be
close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset
or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

|n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Impairment losses are recognised in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease).

{ip) Impairment of financial assets

Finantial assets, with the exception of those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
or impairment at each reporiing date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that the
estimated future cash fiows of the asset have been impacted as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the intial recognition of the financlal asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment Is the difference between the assets'
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For all financial assets, other than trade receivables, the canying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly.
For frade receivables the carrying amount is reduced via an allowance account, against which an uncollectible trade
receivable is written off. A trade receivable is deemed to be uncollectible upon nofification of ingolvency of the debtor
or upon reclept of similar evidence that the Company will be unable to collect the amount. Changes In the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

A previously recognised impairment loss Is reversed when, in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impainment loss was
initially recognised.

In respect of financlal assets carried at amortised cost, with the exception of trade receivables, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income to the exient that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impalrment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impalrment
not been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of trade receivables previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.

{p} FuturePlan debenture
The FuturePlan debenture Is stated at cost plus compounded accrued interest based on the annual rate of return of

a supporting portfolio of fixed interest securities.

(a) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial
year which are unsettied,

{r} Employee entitlements

Provision is made for employee entittements for services rendered up to the balance date. This includes salaries,
wages, bonuses, annual leave and long service leave, but excludes share-based payments. Liabilities arising in
respact of employee entilements expected to be settied within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at their
nominal amounts. All cther employee entitiements are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made in respect of services provided up to the balance date. In determining the present value of
future cash outfiows, discount rates used are based on the interest rates attaching to government securities which
have terms fo maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

SPECIFIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

{s) Provisions

Provisions are only recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event or
decision, and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
recognised at the best estimate of future cash flows discounted to present value where the effect is material.

(t) Life investment contract liabllitles

These contracts are designated at inception as at fair value through profit or loss and subsequently measured at fair value with
any change in value being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Fair value Is the current account balance
plus investmant fluctuation reserves subject to a minimum of current surrender value.

The Company designates these invesiment contracts to be measured at fair value through profit or loss because It eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and
liabilitles or recognising gains or losses on different basis.

(u) Life insurance contract liabilities
The financial reporting methodology used to determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred to as Margin
on Services (MoS).

Under Mo$S the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (‘the profit margin’) is recognised over the fife of the
contract in a manner that reflects the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (‘the service'), hence the term Margin on
Services. The movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the statement of comprehensive income reflects the

planned release of this margin.

Life insurance contract liabilities are ordinarily determined using a projection method, whereby estimates of policy cash flows
(premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected into the future. The policy
liability is calculated s the net present value of these projected cash flows using best estimate assumptions ebout the future.
When the benefits under the life insurance contract liabllity are linked to the assets backing it, the discount rate applied is based
on the expected future eamings rate on those assets. Where the benefits are not linked to the performance of the backing
assets, a risk free discount rate is used. The risk free discount rate is determined by the Chief Actuary based on the zero
coupon swap rates, depending on the nature, structure and term of the contract liabilities.

The assumptions used in the calculation of the policy liabllities are reviewed at each reporting date. A summary of the
significant actuarial methods and assumptions used is set out in Note 17,

(v} Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recognised at falr value less diract issue costs,

(w) Code of conduct disclosure = Chief Actuary
TOWER's Chief Actuary's remuneration includes bonuses that are, in part, dependent upon the reported profits of the
Company. The policy liabilities that are assessed by him therefore impact his total remuneration.

{x) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative information has been reciassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with the current year.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Company makes estimates and assumptions in respect of certain key assets and fiabllities. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key areas where critical accounting estimates are applied are noted

below.

(a) Policy liabilities

Policy liabilities for life Insurance contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods, which are expected to give
approximately the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract. The computations are made by
suitably quallfied personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles. The
methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particular classes of life insurance business written.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities and related assets are:

- the cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts;

- mortality and morbidity experience on life insurance products, including enhancements to policyholder benefits;

~ discontinuance experience, which affects the Company’s ability to recover the cost of acquiring new business over the lives

of the contracts; and
- the amounts credited to policyholders’ accounts compared to the returns on invested assets.

In addition, factors such as regulation, competition, interest rates, taxes, securities market conditions and general economic
conditions affect the level of these ilabilities. In some contracts, the Company shares experience on mortality, morbidity,
persistency and investment results with iis customers, which can offset the impact of these factors on profitability from those
products. Details of specific actuarial policies and methods are set out in Note 17.

(b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts
Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also computed using the above methods. In addition, the recoverability of these

assets is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance is refiective of the amounts that will ultimately be received,
taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and credit risk. Impairment is recognised where there is objective
evidence that the Company may not receive amounts due to it and these amounts can be reliably measured.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.}) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

3. Premium revenue

Life insurance premiums

Life investment premiums

Total life premium revenue

Less depoeits recognised as an increase in policy liabilities

Life insurance premiums recognised as revenue

Less reinsurance ceded
Total net premium revenuse

4. Investment revenus
Fixed interest securities
Interest income

Net realised gain

Net unrealised gain

Equity securities @
Dividend income
Net realised loss
Net unrealised gain

Property securities
Property income

Net realised gain

Net unrealised gain/({loss)

Other

Other investment income
Net roalised gain

Net unrealised gain/(loss)

Total investment reventue
Total investment revenue
Total net realised gain

Total net unrealised gain/(loss)

2010 2009
$000 $000
34,322 41,161
469 530
34,781 41,691
3,608 (8,971)
31,193 31,720
(10,205) (8,188)
20,988 23,534
18,776 26,026
898 5,146
825 1,386
21,499 32,558
2,194 3,728
(1,817) (20,089)
16,182 2,946
16,569 (13,415)
2,010 2,033
6 580
3,878 (10,102)
5,695 {7.479)
8,887 2,601
28,641 25017
36,702 (9,138)
74,330 18,540
32,967 34,388
27,728 10,726
§7,388 (14,908)
116,083 30208

® The income and loss in these categories has been generated by financial agsets designated on initial recognition at fair

value through profit or loss.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 Septembar 2010

5.  Claims expanse

Life insurance claims

Life Investment contrect payments

Total life claims and payments

Less withdrawais recognised as a decrease in policy liablliies
Life insurance clalms recognised as expense

Less reinsurance proceeds recsived
Total net ciaims expense

6.  Other expenses

(a) Life ingurance contracts

Commission

Policy maintenance costs:

Commission

Other maintenance costs

investment management expenses

Total policy meintenance costs-life insurance confracts

Total life insurance expenses

(b} Life investment contracts
Policy meintenance cosls:
Commission

Other maintenance costs

Total life investment expenses

Total underwriting expenses
(c) Financing costs

Intarest expense
Total financing costs

2010 2009

$000 $000
85,328 69,160

3,527 2,848
98,855 72,015
37,314 15,789
81,541 56,246

Sirst

=

2,361 1,720
7,525 8,182
456 535
0,332 11,437
10,332 19,437
16 24
180 286
206 307
M
7,850 -
7,850 .

Interest of $7,850,000 has been incumed by TOWER Life (N.2.) Limited In respect of tax losses generated by other members of
the TOWER tax consolidated group used by TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited for which payments have been outstanding. The interest

was calculated using the average retum on TOWER Life (N.2.) Limited's assets for the relevant period.

Other expenses

included In total management and sales expenses are the following:

Fees paid to audifors PricewaterhouseCoopers:
Audit of financial statements

72

BT

No audit fees were paid by TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited to Its auditors during the year (2009: $72,000). TOWER New Zealand Limited
paid all feas for audit services provided to TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited for the year ended 30 September 2010.

Page 16

PricowiirioUe{CoPess



TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

7. Taxation

{a) Analysis of taxation expense - current and deferred
Current taxation

Deferred taxation

income tax expense for year

Income tax expense aftributed to policyholders
Income tax expense aftributed to shareholders

The tax expense recognised can be reconciled to the accounting (lossYprofit as

Profit before taxation
Continuing operations

Income tax at the cument rate of 30% (2009: 30%)
Taxation effect of:

Life insurance companies permanent differences
Recognition of prior period current tax

Non deductible iosses/(income) from PIEs
Benefit of imputation credits received

Deduction avaliable on redemption of FuturePlan Debenture
Write down of prepaid tax

Non taxable release of provision

Other

Taxation expanse

2010 2000
$000 $000
31,610 8,515
- (3,806)
31,610 4,709
25,700 3,764
5910 945
31,610 4,709
36,368 8,651
10,910 2,595
19,468 3,252
1,311 2)
(1.221) 4570
{364) (358)
{2,656) -
4,590 -
= 6,351)
428 3
Zie10 270

Certain life Insurance policies issued prior to 1 July 2010 are not taxable on accounting profits, but instead on a formula pursuant to the Income Tax Act
2007. The iife insurance companies permanent differences raprasant the amount of accounting (profitMoss reported In the period which s not

(taxable)/deductible.

The Taxation (International Taxation, Life insurance and Remedial Matiers) Act 2009 was passed on 6 October 2009, This Act will affect the taxation
of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited’s life insurance business. The new regime will result in more tax to pay for new term life business issued from 1 July
2010 and existing term ife business once the grand-parenting provisions cease. TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited has estimated that the Impact of the new

reglime in the cument period Is immaterial and is currently reviewing the options available to mitigate the impact on future profits.

In May 2010, legislation was passed to reduce the company tax rate from 30% to 28%. This s effective for the Group from 1 October 2011. Thereis

no financia! impact on the Company in the current period.
{b) Prepaid tax assets

A prepald tex asset of $23,476,000 {2000: $34,700,000) is recognised in the financial statements of the Company as at 30 September 2010. The
tax asset balance recognised is after the amount expected to be utilised to meet the Company’s tax lablfities and a write-down of

Company
$4,590,000 to ensure that the balance reflects the amount expected to be recovered.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

7.  Taxation (cont.}
{c) Daforred tax assets and Habliities

2010

Movements in deferred taxation assets
Provisions and accruals

Unrealised losses

Total deforred tax assets

Movements in deferred taxetion liabilitles
Provisions and accruals

Unrealised gains

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax

2009

Movements in deferred taxation asssts
Provisions and accruals

Unreslised losses

Total deferred tax asssts

Movements in deferred taxation Habllities
Provisions and accruals

Unreallsed losses

Total deferred tax liablilities

Net defecrred tax

(d} Imputation credit account

Cpening Intercompany Charged/ Charged to Closing
balance Transfor (credited) to equity balance
profit and
loss
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
102 - @1 - 21
17,527 - (17,521) - -
17,629 - {17,608) - 21
- - 3,806 - 3,806
- - 3,806 - 3,806
17,520 4 58
Opening Intercompany Charged/  Charged to Closing
balance Transfer (credited) to equity balance
profit and
loss
$000 $000 ___ $000 $000 _$000
80 - 22 - 102
19,848 - (2.321) - 17,527
19,028 - (2,299) - 17,629
19928 29 -]

TOWER Limited, the ultimate parent company of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited, holds an imputation credit account as the representative member of the
TOWER consolidated tax group to which TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited belongs.

{e)} Policyholder credit account

The Policyholder Credit Account enables TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited fo satisfy the income tax liabliity on pelicyholder Income for the year, which Is
disclosed in the TOWER Limited Group Financial Statements. The Taxation (International Taxation, Life Insurance and Remedial Matters) Act 2009

was passad on 6 October 2000 which has resulted in the cessation of the policyholder credit account as at 30 June 2010.
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TOWER LIFE {N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

8. Trade and other receivables
Qutstanding premiums and trade receivables
Reinsurance recoveries recsivable
Other receivabies
Total receivables
Analysed as:

Current

9. Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss
Fixed interest securities

Govemnment securities

Local authority securities

Other fixed interest securities & short term deposits

Total fixed interest securities

Equity securities
Investments in squities
Multi currency unkt trusts
Total equity securities

Property securities
Property trusts
Total Investment In property

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

10. Investment In subsidiaries

2010 2009
$000 $000
26,503 29,480
4,404 2,613
1,181 633
32,088 32,626
—
32,088 32,626

S Y ST )

23,002 21,099
99,191 36,803
240,154 363,791
362,347 421,603
48,063 50,030
168,651 154,432
216,714 204,462
76,335 71,363
76,338 71,363
855,306 697,518

The Company had a 100% interest in TOWER Bourke Street Limited which has a balance date of 30 September and
is incorporated in New Zealand. During the 2010 financial year, TOWER Bourke Street was amaigamated with
TOWER Financial Services Group Limited. TOWER Bourke Street is non-trading and had been fully impaired prior to

amalgamation.

11. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Accrued investment purchases
Outstanding claims - life and other
Total payables
Analysed as:

Current

Non-current

4,193 5,033

480 248

5,948 3,206

10,621 8487

10,621 8,487

| 10,821 BAST
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 30 September 2010

2010 2009
$000 $000
12.  Otherliabiiitles and provisions
Employee provisions 181 -
FuturePlan Debenture - 22,7145
181 gus
Analvaed as!
Curent 181 .
Non-cument - 27
: : 22,745

Mavement in other abilities and provisions
Movements in sach class of provieion other than employee benefits during the finanoial year are set out below:

Empioves provisions

Opening balance at 1 October - -
Addiions 181 -
Closing balance at 30 September 181 -
FuturePlan Debenture

Opening balance at 1 October 22,745 21,457
Additons - 1.288
Withdrawals (22,745) -
Closing balance at 30 September - 22,745

The TOWER Life {N.Z.) Limitad debenture issued to the TOWER FuturePlan was settied on 28 April 2010. The debenture
was maintained in a saparate fund within TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited. interest on the debenture was directly inked to the
investment eamings of thig fund.

2010 2000
13.  intarcompany receivables $000 $000
TOWER Managed Funds Limited 11 -
TOWER Financial Services Group Limited - 1,432
TOWER New Zealand Limited - 2,300
TOWER Insurance Limited 2,638 -

2840 s32

All intercompany balances are cument. Trade amounts owing between related parties are payabie under normal commercial
terms. No debts have been wiitlan off or forgiven during the ysar.

2010 2009

14,  Intercompany payables $000 $000
TOWER Asset Manegement Limied 1,708 597
TOWER Managed Funds Limied 638 1,278
TOWER Managed Funds investments Limited 549 549
TOWER Medical insurance Limited 1,376 -
TOWER New Zesland Limited 3,372 E
TOWER Limited 4,691 =
TOWER Health and Life Limited 11,738 -
TOWER Financial Services Group Limited 1,007 1308
Inery am

Al intercornpany balances are current and repayable on demand. Trade amounts owing are payable under normat
commercial tarms. No debts bave been written off or forgiven during the year.

15. Contributed equity

2010 2009
$000 $000
Ordinary share capital
Fuly paid 10,900 10000
2010 2000
—Number ofshares Number of hares
Represented by:
Ordinary shares issued 10,000 10,000

Al ardinary shares ere ranked equally with one vote attached to each fully paid up ordinary share. Ordinary shares lesued
have no par value,

TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited has no equity or debt that is publicly traded.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

18.  Retained oamings
Opening balance at 1 October
Net profit for the year

Dividends paid

Closing balance at 30 September

17. Life insurance business
{a) Policyholder liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilitles

Value of policy liabilities - Projection Method
Future policy benefits

Future bonuses

Future expenses

Future profit margins

Future premiums

Value of policy liebiliies — Accumulstion Method

Future policy benefits

Unvested policyholder bensfits

Net policyholder lablilities - iife Insurance confracts

Reconciliation of movements in insurance contract policyholder

liabllities
Gross life insurance liabilities at 1 October
Acquired insurance contract liabilites

Increase /(decrease) in net life insurance contract liabllities recognised in

the statementof comprehensive income
Increase in Habilities ceded under reinsurence

Deposits recognised as an increase in policy liabilities
Withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities
Gross iife Insurance liabliities at 30 September

Life investment contract labilities

Value of policy liabilifles — Accumulation Method

Future policy benefits

Net policyholder liablilities - life Investment contracts
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2010 2009
_$000 $000
20,246 16,304
4,758

3,042

g9!éz4;

496,723 485,181
167,558 148,803
46,526 48,783
43,168 38,986

106,912 110,406
647,062 621,437
18858 47488
16,868 47,486
24,867 24,782
688,787 683,705
- "

702,821 723,011
25,740 (18,200)
1,600 1,681
3,120 9,442
(33,786) {12,923)
699,504 702,821
31,759 32,651
31,759 32,651
T
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009

_$000 $000
17.  Lie insurance business {cont.)
{a) Policyholder liabliities (cont.)
Reconcliliation of movements in investment contract policyholder
liabilities
Gross life investment contract liabilities at 1 Octaber 32,651 35,084
Increase/{decreass) in fife investment contract fiabilities recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income 2,167 (117)
Deposits recognised as an increase in policy liabifities 469 530
Withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy labllities (3,528) {2,846)
Gross life investment contract liabilities at 30 September 31,758 32,851
Total gross policyholder Habilities 731,263 735472
Liabliities ceded under reinsurance
At 1 October (9,118) (7,535)
Movement in statement of comprehensive income {1,600} {1,581)
At 30 September {10,716} (9,118)
Net policyholder liabilities - non current 72@41 w

The Company has designated life investment contract liabilities at falr value through profit or loss. The impact on the fair value of
these liabllities resulting from changes in credit risk recognised during the year is nil (2009: nil), except where the fair value of
investment assets backing these liabilities Is impacted by changes in credit risk. Any such impact on the investment assets is
reflected in the movement in the fair value of these contracts.

(b} Analysis of life Insurance and life Investment contract results

Lie insurance contracts

Planned profit margins 4,369 4,115
Experience proflts/(losses) 206 57
Investment (losses)eamings on assets in excess of policy liabliities of life

companles (130} (446)
Operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders arising from the life

Insurance contracts - 4,445 3,726
Life investment contracts

Planned profit margins 47 200
Experience profits 266 14
Operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders arising from the life

investment contracts 313 214

{c) Solvency requirements of life funds
The minimum equity required fo be retained to mest solvency requirements over and above the policy liabilities for the Company is
shown below. The shareholdsr equity retained in the Company exceeds these minimum requirements.

2010 2000
$000 $000
Solvency requirement A 758,865 743,636
Represented by:
Policyholder liabllities 665,680 706,655
Other labilities 57,272 35,711
Solvency reserve B 5,913 1,270
Solvency requirement 756,865 743,636
Assets available to meet solvency reserve: [ 50,647 49,945
less solvency reserve B §,81¢ 1,270
Excess assets above required 44,734 48,675
Coverage of required solvency reserve cB 8.57 39.33

The solvency requirement (A) Is calculeted in accordance with Professional Standard No. 5.01 ‘Solvency Reserving for Life
Insurance Business' issued by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries. The solvency reserve (B) represents the assets required to be
held in excess of policy and other liabilities in order to meet the solvency requirement.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

17.  Policyholder liabllities and life insurance contracts (cont.)

{d) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS - LIFE INSURANCE
The effective date of the policy liabilities and solvency reserves calculation is 30 September 2010. The Chief Actuary, Eric Judd, BSC,
FIAA, FNZSA has calculated policy liabilities for TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited. The actuary Is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data
from which the policy liabllites have been determined.

This note summarises the assumptions made and the methods adopted for the calculations of policy liabiliies and solvency
requirements.

{1) Policy liabliities

Policy liabilities for life insurance business have been determined in accordance with Professional Standard No.3 “Determination of
Life insurance Policy Liabilities” issued by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries for TOWER Life (N.2.) Ltd. This standard requires
that policy liabilities be calculated on the basis of best estimate assumptions and in 2 way that allows for the release of planned
marging as services are provided to policyholders,

Valuation of policy liabliities
Policy liabilities comprise the amount required to pay the expected future benefits and expenses after receiving expected future
premiums and investment eamings.

The value of policy liabilities may also include a component for profit margins on existing business that will be earned as services are
provided to policy owners over the time the relevant policies are held with the Company.

The company incurs costs in selling new policies. Any costs not recovered by specific charges received from the policy owner at
inception are normally deferred. New business selling costs (or acquisition costs) related to the acquisition of new business are
deferred as iong as the underlying policies are expected to be profitable. Where costs are deferred, they are recovered from premiums
or charges receivable in the future.

Methods used to value policy liabllitles

() Projection method
The projection method uses expected cash flows (premiums, investment income, redemptions or benefit payments, expenses and
profits) to establish the value of policy llabliities. The value of expected future premiums is deducted from the value of expected benefit
and expense payments to arrive at the obligation to policy owners.

(i) Accumuistion method
Under the accumulation method for risk policles the policy liability is the sum of the uneamed premiums, outstanding claims plus an
allowance for claims incurred but not yet reported. For investment policies, the policy liability is determined as the policy account
batance including accrued interest to the balance date, plus Investment fluctation reserves subject to a minimum of the current
surrender value.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

17.  Policyholder liabilities and Ife insurance contracts

(d) Ssummary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life Insurance (cont.)
(1) Policy liabiiities (cont)

Methods used

Where the policy liability is determined by the projection method, actuarial standards require profit to be related to one or
mere financlally measurable indicators of the provision of service (or related income) called "profit carriers”. The profit
carriers adopted for the major product groups are shown in the table below:

MAJOR PRODUCT GROUPS METHOD |PROFIT CARRIERS (for business
valued using projection method)
Traditional participating F‘mjecﬁon Cost of supportable bonus
Traditional non-participating, renewal and level term and Projection |Expected death claims
|mortgage repayment insurance
Annuities Projection |Expected annuity payments
Individual lump sum life insurance risk (life, temporary and Projection |Expected claims

Lpermanent disability and trauma) and disability income
protection insurance

Non-participating investment account Accumulation
Investment linked Accumulation
Group risk insurances and renewable insurances Accumulation
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TOWER LIFE {N.2) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For the year anded 30 Soptember 2010

17.  Life insurance buslness {(cont.}

{d) Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life insurance (cont.)

{ii) Disclosure of assumptions

The following table summarises the key assumptions used in the calculation of policyholder flabilities, together with notes on any significant changes in the essumptions:
HREQUIREQ ASSUMPTION BASIS OF ASSUMPTION (By product Group) SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
Discourit rates for participeting business As the value of benefits is contractually linked to the performance of The discount rates

assets, a discount rate based on the market return on the asset used are as follows:
backing policy liabilities is used. The discount rate assumed in
calculating policyholder Habilities was derived from the expected
long term average rates of return for the assats pool backing this
business, besed on the benchmark asset mix. Discount rates
assumed are net of taxation and investment expense.

Seplember 2010 4.7% from
110/2010 to
30/0812011
4.9% from
1102011
onward

September 2008 5.2%

contracts are not contractually linke to the performance of backing asset pools. The risk free
discount rates have been determined based on the swap rates, depending on the nature The discount rates used are as follows:
structure and term of the coniract lisbilities. Discount rates are assumed net of investment

Discount rates for non-participating e insurance FkﬁeedmcoummIsvebamadomdfamalmmmmummmmﬁs

management expenses.
Seplember 2010 3.1% t03.2%
September 2003 4.1% 10 4.2%
Infiation Fuﬁmdemﬁonmmmanmmwummamwemmmem Benefit indexation -
indexation.
September 2010 20%
September 2009 2.0%
Future expanses Future maintenance expenses have boen set based onh experience analyses conducted by  |Expense for Annuity has been increased

the various companies as well s tha actuaries’ expectations of future expense levels. by 19%

Fulure Investment expenses have baen assumed to be at the same percentage of assets  |Expense for traditional business has

undor management 2s currently applies. boen reduced by 6%
|Rates of taxation {Rates of taxation have been BBSUMBG 1o remaln at CLTERE IVes. Allowance has been made for the tax.
rate change from 30% to 28% from
111072011, Also for participating
|prodiicts, underwriting tax has been set
10 zero to reflect the change In taxtion
regime.
Mortallty — risk products |Standard mortallty tabies, primerly NZ97 in New Zealand. 1hese are adjusted for company |None
lexperiance.
Moriality — annuities ,Smndard mortality tabies (New Zealand use PMLBOC10) adjusted for company experience. |None
Disabiiity — mp sum Based upon recent comparyy and relnsurer experience adjuating for different product None
definitions. Some wholesale schemes use spacific company experience.
Disabllity income Standard morbidity tables (IADE9-83) adjusted for company experience. Specific company |None
experience Is used for certein wholesale sohemes.
Discontinuances Discontinuence rates have been assumed 1o be consistent with the experience of recent Minor changes were made to assumed
years. lapse rates in response to recent
Assumed discontinuance rates vary by sub-grouping within e class and vary according to the |experience
length of time tranchee of busineas have been in-force and other relevant factors.

Surrender values lSunender values are based on current practice. None

Reles of fuiure supportable parficipating banefits |Assumed fulure supportable bonus raies inchaded in policyhoider liabiiities were set SUch that | FutLre supportable bonus rales for
the present value of policyholder liabiiiies, allowing for the sharehokders’ right to participate In|participating banefits have been
distributions, equels the value of assets supporting the business. Increased by $0.7 per $1,000

Distributions are split between policyholders and shareholders with the valuation allowing for {None
shareholders to share in distributions. The rate of shareholder participation assumed &

generally a2 the maximum aflowable of 25% of the value of boruses distributed to

participating policyholders subject to policy conditions.

Additional policy bonuses will emerge from the sssets representing policyholders’ unvestod  |None
benefits.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2) LMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

17. e insurance business (cont.)

{d) Summany of significant actuarial methods and assumptions - life iInsurance {cont.)

(H1) Effect of changes In actuarial sssumptions during the reporting period

The Eabjiities for life Insurance contracts include the value of future profit margins that are to be released over future reporting periods. The impact of assumption changes on
non participating business ang abaorbed by the future profit margins, provided sufficient future margins exist, such that there lg no change In the contract liability in the current
period.

For participating business, the impact of essumption changes is absorbed bythu value of future supportable bonus. The cumrent period contract kabilty is impacted by the
change In cost of curment period supportable bonus.

The impact of the assumption changes in the cumment period on future profit margins in respect of life insurance contracls {exciuding new busineas contracte which are
measured using assumptions st the valuation date) are shown below.

Whmmvmﬁmwnmmammmmtoammeawmmm moresulﬁng losses are recognised In the curment year via & changed in the
contract kabifty. These losses may be d In quent P be i

The ¥fe confract Hability calculations include the use of published market yieids, such as government bond rates. The changes in these yiekds do not represent actuarial
assumption changes and thay impact both e insurance contract liebiliies and asset values as st the balance shest date.

The impact of assumption changes for life i ntracts made during the year is shown below.
Far the year end 30 Septomber 2010
Change In next
Change In future Financial Year's Change in Cumrent Changein
shareholder Shareholder Period Contrect Curvent Period
profit margine Planned Profit Liability Shareholder Profit
$ $ $ $
pew oo
Mortality and Morbility 198,376 (5,145) 28,868 {5,774}
Discontinuances 513,909 25,086 {168,654) 33,731
Expenses 2,901,184 171,622 (796,843) 159,369
Sther (223,717) {28,225) - .
For the year end 30 September 2009
Change in next
Chanpo in future Financial Year's Change In Current Change in
sharshoider Sharcholder Period Contract Current Period
profit marains Planned Profit Liabitity Shareholder Profit
$ $ $ $
Assumption change
Mortality and Morbility 767,314 $1,802 (173,508) 34,702
Expanses 333,060 25643 (110,827) 22,165
Other (158} {268} - -
|!0ﬂ_lbn [impact of movement in underlying variable .
Expense risk An increase in the level or inflationary growth of axpenses over assumed levels will de profit and sk ider equity.
Interest rate risk Depending on the profile of the investment portfolio, the investment income of the Group will decrease &s interest rates

dacrease. This may be offset to an extent by changes in the market valus of fixad Interest investments. The impact on proft and
shareholder equity depends on the relative profiles of assets and liabiities, to the extent that these are not maiched.

Mortallty ratee For i contracts p g desth benefits, greater mortality rates would lead to higher levels of claims, increasing
assuciated daims cost and thersfore reducing profit and shareholder equity.
Morbidity rates ‘The cost of health-related claims depends on both the incidence of poficyholders bacoming temporerly or totelly and permanently

disabled and, in the case of temporary disablement, the duration which they remain temparariy disabled. Higher then expected
intidence and duration would be likely to increase claim costs, reducing profit and sharsholders equity,

Discontinuance The impact of the discontinuance rate assumption depends on a range of factors Including the type of contract, the surrender
value basis {where applicable) and the duration in force. For exampie, an increase in discontinuance rates 6t eariier durations of
iife insurance contracts usually has @ negative effect on profit and sharehokier equity. Hi due 1o the intarplay between the
factors, there is not always an adverse outcome from an increase in discontinuance rates.

Market risk For benefits which are not contraciually inked to the underlying assets, the Group is exposed to market risk.

Sensitivity analyels

Sensifivity analysis f8 conducted to quantify the exposure 1o risk of change in the key underlying variables. The veluations inciuded in the reported results are ceiculated using
certain assumptions about theee variable as disciosed above. The movemaent in any key variable will impact the performance of the Company. The table below describes how
the chenge in each arsumption witl affect the Insurance Kabilitios and show an analysis of the sensitivity of the profit or loss and equity net of reinsurance to changes In

assumptions.

New Zealand Change In next financlal year's sharghokier profit and equity
nat of reinsurance

VARIABLE MOVEMENT 2010 2000

$000 $000
Mortality Advarse movement of 10% (288,735) (278,952)
Morbidity Claims Coets Adverse movement of 10% (179,806) {175,320)
Annuitant Mortality Adverse movement of 10% (197,009) {179,130)
Lupses and Surrenders Adverse movement of 10% (83,067) {75,189)
Renewal expenses Adverse movement of 10% (288,506) (296,990)
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

17. LHe insurance business (cont.)

(Iv) Solvency reguirements

Separate to the policy llabilities recognised in the Staternent of Balance Sheet, the life ineurance companies maintain sufficient capltal to meet solvency requirements. These
are amounts required to pravide protection against the impact of fluctuations and unexpected sdverse circumstances on life insurance companies.

Tha methodology and basis for determining the Solvency Requirement are in accordance with the requirements of "Profesional Standard No. 5.01 Solvency Reserving for
Life Insurance Businass" issuad by the New Zealand Society of Actuaries.

{v) Life insurance risk
The life insurance business of the Company involves a number of non-financial risks concerned with the pricing, scceptance and manegement of the mortality, morbkiRy and
longevily risks sccepted from policyholders.

Insurance risks are controlled through the use of underwriting procedures and adequate premium rates and palicy charges, all of which are approved by the Chief Actuary.
Tight controls are also maintained over claims management practices o snsure the correct and timely payment of insurance claims.

Undlerwriting manegement procsdives

Underwrlting ls managed by a saparste department with underwriting limits in piace fo enforce appropriate risk selection criveria. The Company provides appropriate training
and development of underw:jiing steff. Individual policles carrying insurance risk are underwriien on their mexrits and are generally not issued without having been examined
and underwritten individually. Group risk insurance policies are underwritien on the merits of an empioyee group as a whole, subject to certain limits for individual members.

Claim management procedures
Claims are managed through a dedicated claims team, with appropriste training and development of staff to srsure procedures are adhered to. Claims are managed (o
ensure timely and correct payment in accordance with policy conditions. Claims experience is reviewed regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established.

Reinsursnce management provediures
The company holds eppropriate reinsurance arrangemenis to limk exposure to individual and catastrophe risks. All reinsurance amangements ere approved by the Chief

Terms and conditions of fife insurance contracts
The nuture of the tenms of the insurance contracts written by the Company is such that certain external variables can be identified on which related cash flows for claim
payments depend. The tables below provide an overview of the key variables upon which the amourt of related cash flows are deperdent.

Nature of compensation for claims
Banefits, definod by the insurance contract are determined by the

Type of
Non-participating ife (Guaranteed benefits paii on death,

Insurance contracts with permanent and temporary disablerment or  |contract and not directly affected by the performance of urderlying |expenses and market
fixed and gusranteed tarma maturity that are fixed and guarantead and {assets or the performance of the contracts as whole. earnings on assels backing
(Term Life and Dissbiity not at the discretion of the issuer. the liabliities

including renswable berm)

Life annuilty contracts These policies provide a guaranted regular [ The amount of the guaranteed regular income Is set &t inception of [Longevity, benefit infilation,
inoome for the §fe of the insured for a inltisl [the poiicy Inciuding any indexation. exponses and market
single premium. samings on assels backing

|the iisbiikies

Traditional Iife insurance Thege policies Include & clearly defined Benafits arising from the discretionary participation feature are Mortality, morbidity, lapses,

contracts with discretionary |inklal guaranteed sum assured that is based on the performance of a specified pool of contracts or & expenses and market

participating banefits payable on death. The guarantee amount is |specified type of contract, Operating profit arising from these earnings on assets backing

(endowment and whole of | Increased throughout the duretion of the  |contracts s allocated between the policyholders and sharehoiders. [the Bablities

life) policy by the addition of bonuses annually | The amount allocated to policyhoiders is held as an unvested policy
that once added are not removed. An labiity until |t is distributed to spacific policyholders via bonuses.
additional (terminal) bonus Is payable on
claims paid as a result of death or maturily,
 Tormingl bonus smounts are not
guaranteed.

Investment account Tha gross valus of the premiums received [The paymant of the account balance is generally guaranteed, Fees, inpses, axpenses and

contracts with discretionary |is invested in the investmant account with  |although & may be subject to certain penalties on early termination. [market esmings on assets

participating features fees and premiums for any associated On certain confracts withdrawals can be deferred over limited time [backing the liabllkies
insurance cover being deducted from the  {periods.
account balance. Interest s creditad

(vi) Concentration of insurance risk

The Company aims to maintain a portfolio of policyholdars with a broad spread of insurance risk types, ages, sexes, occupation classes and geographical locations for the
individual and group risk business. The Company uses reinsurance to imit the insurance risk exposure for any one individual. The group risk business unik offers Insurance in
respect of groups of employees. The Company is exposed to e greater risk of loss from events affecting & location where groups of insured employses work. The Company
has purchased catastrophe reinsurance to limit the exposure from any one group event.
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For the yeer ended 30 Septamber 2010
17. Lo Insurance business {cont.)

{vil} Liguidity risk and future net cash outflows

fess thanone year onetotwoyears  twotothree years threetofour yesrs fourtofiveyears  over five years  No maturity Total
'$000 '$000 '$000 *$000 '$000 '$000 '$000 *$000

Life insurance contract Nakilities
30 September 2010 ‘ 38204 34574 S22 20,804 26,356 394,102 . 557,370
30 Septemnber 2009 38,526 36,158 32,585 0,110 21,744 968,580 - 533,688

18.  Risk management and financial instrument Information

‘The financlal condition and operaling resulls of the Company are affectad by & number of key financial and non-financial risks. Financial risks include market risk, credit riek end
financing and fguidity sk, The nonfinancial risks inckude insurance risk, comphiance siek and operational risk. The Compary’s objectives and policies in respect of insurance risks are
dieciosed in Note 17, whie the managing of financial risk is set out in the remainder of this secion.

The Compeny's objective is to satisfactorlly manage these risks In ine with the TOWER Limited Group's risk management policy and guidance which are approved by the Board.
Various procedures are put in place 1o control and mitigate the dske faced by the Company depending on the nature of the riek. Exposure to all risis s monitored by the TOWER
Limited Group Risk snd Compliance Manager and this exp ls reported thiy to ive management and quarterly to the TOWER Limited Group Audit and Compliance
Committes.

The TOWER Limited Board has delegated to the TOWER LimRed Group Audit and Compliance Committee the responsibiity to review the effectiveness and sfficiency of management
processes, sk management and intemal financial controls and systems for each subsidiary as pert of their duties.

Financial rigks are generally d and lod by appropriate assets to back policy kablities. The assets are regularty monkored to snsure that there ere no matarial
nmmdlﬂhlltynismatehhgbwosmdollnrm:whuiwldtymkmdcmdlrhkmmainwmmmmimlu For those ife Insurance and We investment contracts
where the benefits paid are directly impacted by the value of the underlying assets, the Company is exposed to the risk of future decreased asest management fees ae & result of &
decline in assets under management.

The TOWER Limited Board has delegated i the TOWER Limited Group Investment Committee the responsibiity for:

« reviewing investment policy for sharehokier an policyholder funds;
- reviewing the risk management policy and statements in respect of investment management, including the derivalive policy;

- considering the establishment, adjustment or deletion of fimits and counter-party approvals, and the acope of financial nstruments to be used in the managerent of investments;
-~ reviewing the sppainiment of exdemal Investment managers; and

- monitoring comgpliance with investment policies and client mandates.

Compliance risk and operational risk are both monitored by intemal committees and report regularly to the TOWER Uimited Board.
(a) Market risk

Markst risk is the risk of change In the fair valus of financial instruments from fluctuations in the foreign exchange retes {currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) snd
mariwt prices (price risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors spacific to an individual financial instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all financisl instruments raded

in & market.

‘The TOWER Umited Group Investment Committee determines the levels of market risk it accepts by reviewing:
« what constitutes market risk for the Company;
« the basis used to fair value financial assets and lisbilities;
- asset gllocation and portfolio lmit struckures;
- diversification benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical areas; and
- suts out reporting of market risk exposures and the monitoring thersof.

()  Curency risk

Currency risk s the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rates when applied to ssssts and labiities or future transactions denominated in & currency that is not the
Company's functions! cuency.

“The TOWER Limited Group investment Committoe sets limiis for the mansagement of currency risk arising from Company investments based on prudent inlemational asset
managemant practice. Regular reviews are conducted 1o ensure that thege limits are adhered io.

"The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts in accordence with lis investment policies == sconomic hedges of foreign currency exposure i investments in
International equities through its hoidings In international equilies funds. The main foreign cumencies exposure of the funds is 1o the Australian and US dollars, Japsness Yen, Euro,
British Pounds and Chinese Yuan.

“Tha impact of reasonably possibls changes in the currency risk on the Company's shawcholders’ profit and aquity is inciuded in (F) below.
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18.  Risk management and financial instrument information (cont.)
{a) Market risk {cont.)
(1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future value of cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In interest rates.

‘The Company manages interest rate risk arising from its interest bearing investments in accordance with TOWER Limited Group Investment
Committee approved policies.
Life insurance

Interest rate risk and other market risks arise In life insurance to the extent thet there is & mismatch betwean the policyholder liabilities and the assets
backing those Kabilities. These mismatches could Impact cumrent period operating profits.

The primary areas of mismatch for the Company’s life Insurancs business are:

- For non-participeting life insurance contracts, the mismatch between the risk free discourt rates used in the policy liability calculations and the
backing asset values.

- For a portion of the life investrment contract business, the mismatch between the value of the financial instrument liabilities (including the discount
rates used in their calculation, if applicable) and the backing asset values.

Interest rate and other market risks are managed by the Company through a strategic asset allocation policy and an investment management policy
that has regerd to policyholder expectations and risks and to tanget surplus for both capitel adequacy and solvency as advised by the Chief Actuary,

(i)} Price risk

Price risk Is the risk of loss resulting from the decline in prices of equity securities or other assets. The Company Is exposed io the price risk because
The price risk Is managed by diversification of the investment porifolio, which is done in accordance with the limits set by the investment mandates
and monitored by the TOWER Limited Group investment Committes.

(b) Credit risk

Credit rigk is the risk of loss that arises from a counterparty falling to meet their contractual commitment in full and on time, or from losses arising
from the change in value of a trading financial Instrument as a result in changes In credit rigk of that instrument.

The Company's axposure (o credit risk is limited to deposits and investmants hald with banks and other financlal Institutions as well as credit
exposurs to trade customers or other counterparties. For banks and financial institutions the minimum credit rating accepted by the Company Is 'A".
independent ratings are used for customer that are rated by rating agencies. For customers with no extemal ratings, intemally developed minimum
credit quality requiremants are applied, which takes into accounts customers’ financial posifion, past axperisnce and other relevant factors. The
overall exposure to credit risk is monitored on group basis In accordance with the limits set by the TOWER Limited Board.

{) Creokt risk concentration

Concertration of credit risk exists when the Company enters inta contracts or financial instruments with a number of counterparties that are engaged
in similar business activities or exposed to similar economic factors that might affect their ability to meet contractual ebligations. The Company
manages concentration of credit risk by credit rating, industry type and individual counterparty.

The significant concentrations of credit risk are outiined by industry type below.

2010 2008
Carrying value Carrying value

$000 $000
New Zaaland government 23,002 21,099
Other govemments 98,191 368,803
Banks 225,029 378,398
Other non-investment related receivables 33,250 14,585
Other industries 95,820 57,646
Intercompany receivables 2,649 2,300
Total financial assets with significant credit exposure 478,941 510,829
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For the year ended 30 September 2010

18, Risk management snd financial instrument information (cont.}
{b) Credit risk {cont)

(1) Maximum exposure to credi risk

The Company’s maximum exposure to credil risk without taking account of any collateral ar any other credit enhancerments Is the camying amount of financial assets held

2010

Carmying vekse

Cash and cash equivalents 13,817
Relnsurance recoveries receivable 4,408
Oulstanding premiums and trade receivables 14,708
Unsetiled investments sale 523
intercompany recelvable 2649
Fixad Interest sacurities 362,347
Government securities .
Derivative finsncial asset 63,019
Loans recelvable 3,601
Interest receivable 18,785

478,041

{8) Credit qualily of nancie! sssets that are neither past due nor impaired

2009
Carrying velue
.. X

2730
2,513
16,736
346
2,300
421,603
48,045
3,608
14,750
510,820

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past dus nor impaired can be assessed by reference to extemnal credit ratings (if apphicable) or to historical information

ebout counterparty default rales:

2010
Credit Exposure by credil rating $000
AAA 73,002
AA 278,979
A 88,451
B -
Below BBB -
Total counterparties with extemal credit rating by Standard and Poor's. 366,432
For axposures with no credit rating, the financial aseete can be ciassifisd in the following group:
Group 1 4718
Group 1A 2649
Group 2 24,206
Group 2A >
Group 3 53,442
Other asaets with no credit rating. 85,105
Total assets 474,537

Group 1 ~trade debtons (less then 8 months old)
Group 2 - trade debtors {more then 6 months) with some defaulls in the past
Group 3 - unrated invesiments

Group 1A - intercompany receivables {iess than & manths old)
Group 2A - interoompany receivables (more than 6 months with no defaults in the past)

(W) Financlel assets that would otherwise be past due whose terms have been renegotiated
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the past year.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For the year ended 30 September 2010

18. Risk management and financlal instrument information (cont.)
(b) Credit risk (cont)

{v) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

The Compeny considers thet financial assets are past due if payments have not been received when contractually due. At the reporting date, the fotal
carrying value of past due but not impaired assets held by the Company is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

tessthan3idays 31to60days 6110 90d over 90 days Total
$000 _—'%6

As ut 30 Saptember 2010 $000 $000 $000
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 823 315 477 2,789 4408
Total 823 315 477 2,789 4404
As st 30 September 2009

Reinsurante recoveries receivable 968 132 416 997 2513
Total 968 132 416 997 2513

{vi) Financial essets that are individuslly Impeired
There were no assets that were individually impaired.

For policies with a surrander or investment value, cutstanding premiums are supporiad by the underlying assets invested. When outstanding premiums reach
the value of e surrender or Investment value, the assets are realised and offset against the outstanding debt. Policies with no surrender value are lapsed
when oulstanding premiums exceed a set value and the outstanding premiums are written off.

{c) Financing and liquidity risk

Financing and liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its cash outflows or refinance debt obligations, as they fall dus, because of
lack of liquid assets or access to funding on acoeptable terms,

To mitigate financing and liquidity risk the Company maintains sufficlent liquid assets to ensure that the Company can meet its debt obligations and other cash
outfiows on a timely basis.
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

18.  Risk management and financial Instrument information (cont.)
{c) Financing and Nquidity risk
(8 Financia! ilabiiies by contractusl maturity

‘The table below summarises ths Company's financial labiiities into relevant maturity groups based on the remalning period at the balance date to the contractusl maturity date.
The amounits disciosed are contractual undiscounted cash flows that include interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

The following contractual maturities of financial liablilfes, including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

As at 30 September 2010

Cartying  Contractual lessthan onetotwo twoto threetofour fourtofive overfive No
vaiue cash flows * _one year rs___ threeyears yeeors years years maturity Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

UsbHitles
Reinsurance payable 1,962 1,882 1,962 - > - - » - 1.962
Unsettied investment purchases 480 480 480 " - - - E: - 430
Life investment contract abilities 31,759 31,759 - - - - - = 31,759 31,758
FuturePlan debenture - - B - - > - € ® &
Intercompany payubles 31,078 31,078 31,076 - - - - - 3 31,076
Derivative financial labliities 1652 4352 (1,922} (629) (289) (26) 216 8213 - 4,352
Other payables {specify) 3,341 3,341 3341 - = - - - - 3,341
Tots! Liabilities 70270 12,870 95,787 ©25) (7)) (36) 216 6218 91,758 72870
As at 30 September 2009
Carrying  Contractual lessthan onetotwo  twoto  threetofour fourtofive overfive No
value cash flows * one year years three years years yests years maturity Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
LiabHItles
Relnsurance payable 518 2,519 2519 e = & # i & 2,519
Unsettied investment purchases 248 248 248 . . - B - = 248
Life Investment contract liabilities 32,651 - . " - - - - 32,651 32,651
FuturePlan debenture 22,745 22,745 22,745 . - - 2] - e 22,745
Intercompany payables 3,733 3733 3,733 - - - - - - 3,783
Derivative financiat liabilities 20,834 38213 (3.613) 628 2538 3,265 3436 31,964 » 38,213
Other payshles 2,911 2,911 2811 - - - - - - 2811
Total Liabliities 85,441 70,389 28,544 628 2533 3,265 3438 31,964 32,651 103,020
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18. Risk manspement and financial instrument information (cont.)

(d} Fair values of financial assets and iablilties

Fakr value Is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a abiity settied, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length
transaction. Fakr values of financlal instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices at balance date. The fak value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market are determinad using valuation techniyes. The valuation techniques used to value itfe investment
contract lablities are desoribed in Note 17. Refer below for detalls of valuation methods used for each remaining category of financlal assets and
fiablities.

The carrying amounts of all financis! assets and fiabiities reasonably approximate their fair values,
The foliowing methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values of financlal instruments.

(b Cash end cash equivslents
The camying amount of cash and cash equivalents reasonably approximates its fair values.

() Financia! sssels at fair vaius through profit or foss
The fair value of financial assets at feir value through profit or loss Is determined by reference to thelr quoted price at the reporting date. The fair valve of
property investments is determined by reference to external valuations.

(i) Loans and recelvables, trads and other payables
Carrying values of loans and recelvables, adjusted for impairment values, and carrying vaiues of trade and other payables reasonably approximate their
fair values.

(i) Derivative financial liabilities and assets
The fair value of derivative financiel ablities is determinad by the reference to the quoted market price of the undertying equity securities.

Financial instruments that are messured in the balance sheet at fakr vaiue (excluding short term amounts held at & reasonable approximation of fair vaiue),
are categorised by the following fair value measurement hierarchy levels:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other then quoted prices inchxied within Leve! 1 that sre observable for the asset or liablity, elther directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices)

Lavel 3 - inputs for that asset or liability that ere not based on observable market data (L.e. unobservable inputs)

The following teble presents the Company's sssets and liabilities categorised by fair value measurement hierarchy levels as st 30 Ssptember 2010,
2010

Total Leovel 1 Lovel 2 Leval 3
$000 $000 $000 $000

Assets
Derivative finencisl assets 63,018 - 63,019 -
Investment in sted equity securities 218,714 48,084 168,630 -
Investrents in fixed interest securities 362,347 - 362,347 -
Investments in property seciuritios 76,336 - 76,336 -
Other - - - B
Total financial assete 716,416 46084 670332 B
Total Lovef 1 Lovel2 Level 3
$000 $000 $000 $000
Lisbiities
Derivative financial kabities (1.862) . {1,052) -
Life investment oontract liablities (31,769) . (31,769) -
Total financisl Habiities (33,411) - {33411)

The fakr valus of financial instruments fraded in active merkets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market'is:regarded as
active ¥ quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or reguiatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occuming market fransactions on an arm's length basis, The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the group Is the current bid price. These Instrumernts are included in Level 1.

The fair vaiue of financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-oounter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniquos. These valuation techniques maximise the use of cbeervable market dats where k is avaliable and rely as liftle as possible on entity specific
estimates. if al significant inputs required to feir value an instrument are cbservable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

i one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obearvable market data, the instrument is included in Leve! 3. The Company does not hoki any
Level 3 investmont assels.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financlal Instruments Include:
- Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash fiows based on observable yield curves.
Other techniques, such as discounted cash fiow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

Comparetive Information is not provided for the Company’s hierarchy and sensitivity of assete and liablitles measured at fak value during this cument
financial period.

{e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financlal instruments used include interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward conlracts,
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TOWER Life (NZ) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2009

18. Risk management and financial instrument information (cont.)

(e) Derivative financial Instruments (cont.)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is antered into and are subsequently remaasured at their
fair value. The fair value of Interest rate swaps are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the reporting date and are disclosed
below. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the start of the financlal year.

The table below details the notional principal amounts (amounts used 10 calculate payments made on swap contracts), fair values and
remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at reporting date:

Average contracted fixed Notlonal principal
interest amount Fair value
Outstanding Interest rate
Swap contracts to Recelve
fixed pay fioating rates 2010 2008 2010 2009 2010 2009
% % $000____ $000 | $000  $000 |

Less than 1 year 0.00% 8.32% - 4,000 - 106

1102 years 6.64% 0.00% 3,500 - 134 -
210 5 years 7.84% 7.45% 7,900 9,400 1,077 852
over 5 years 6.66% B8.77% 465,750 515,750 60414 18,708
477,150 150 61 20,764

The foreign exchange forward contracts are settied on a gross basis. All contracts mature within 12 months of the reporting date and their
carrying values reasonably approximate undiscounted cash flows because the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair value of Interest rate swaps is included within fixed interest securities in Note 9.

Yotal
contractual  Less than
cash flows one year

$000 $000
As at 30 September 2010
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Outfiow 87,972 87,972
Infiow 87,714 87,714
As at 30 September 2009
Forward forelgn exchange contracts
Outflow 65,371 65,371
Inflow 70,017 70,017
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For theyar anded 30 Seplember 2008 ., .,

{f) Sensitivity analysis

The analysis below demostretes the impect of changes in interest rates, exchange rstes and equity prices on the Company's shareholder profit
after tax and equity. The analysis is based on changes in economic conditions that are considered reasonably possible at the reporting date, The

potential impact is assumed es at the reporting date.
() interest rate

The impact of a 50 basis point change (2008: 50 basis point) in New Zealand and Intemational rates on the Company profit after tax is as balow.
The sensitivity analysis should assume changes in interest rates only. All other variables are helkd constant,

2010
impact on
profit after tex_ eqully
$000 $000
Change in variables
+80 basis points {1,086) (1,086}
<50 basls points 1,086 1,086

2009
Impeact on
profit efter tax g%
$000 000
{1,180) {1,190)
1,180 1,190

This analysis assumes that the sensitivity applies to the closing market vields of fixed interest investments. A paraliel shift in the yield curve is
assumed. The dollar impact of the change In Interest rates is esimated by reference % the average duretion of the Investment assets.

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the reporting

period included in the analysis.

The impact of changes in market interest retes presented in (i) above excludes life insurance contract liabllities, which are also affected by the
changes in market interest rates that determine the discount rates appiicable to these contracts. The tabls below provides a sensitivity analysis in
respect of changes in interest rates (2009: 50 basig point) as applied to life insurance contract liabllities. A combined effect is necessary to

appreciate the sensitivity of the Company's profit to movements in interest rates.

2010
Impact on
profit efter tax equily
$000 $000
Change in variables
+50 basis points 681 681
-60 basis points (712) (712)

2008
Impact on
profit after tax eqully
$000 $000
660 660
(668) (e68)

Sensitivity to interest rates has been assessed by reference to Intemal Investigations of the movement in ife Insurance contract liablkties to

maovements In discount retes consistent with that used for internal management reporting.
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TOWER LIife (NZ) Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the  year ended 30 September 2009
18. RisK'management and financlal instrument information {cont.)

(f) Sensitivity analysis (cont.)

(fl) Foreign currency

The table below demonstrates the impact of @ 10% movement of curency rates against the New Zealand dollar on the Company's shareholder
profit after tax and equity. The analysis assumes changes in forelgn cumency retes only, with all other variables held constant. The potential
impact on the profit and equity of the Company Is due to the changes in fair value of curency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities as at the

reporting date.

2010 2009
Impect on Impact on
profit after tex equity profit after tax equity
$000 $000 $000 $000
Chenge In variables
10% appreciation of New Zealand dollar (116) {116) {179) (179}
10% depraciation of New Zeslend dollar 116 118 179 179

The dollar impact of the change in currency movements is determined by applying the sensitivity to the value of the unhedged intemational
assefs.

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the
reporting period included in the analysis.

(5) Equity price

Equity price risk s the risk that the fair value of equities will decrease as a result of changes in levels of equity indices and the valve of individual
stocks. The Company holds all of is equities at fair value through profit or loss.

The table below demonsirates the impact of a 10% movement in New Zealand equities on the profit after tax and equity of the Company. The
potential impact is assumed as at the reporting date. The analysis below excludes investment linked business, which is disclosed in note 27.
Investment linked business can be excluded beceuse any assat movement will fiow through to the policyholder.

2010 2009
impact on Impact on
profit after tax equity profit after tax equity
. $000 $000 $000 $000
Change In vaniables
+10% In New Zealand equities 74 74 100 100
-10% in Now Zealand equities (74) (74) (100) {100}

The dollar impact of the change In the New Zealand equities Is determined by applying tha sensitivity to the value of the New Zealand equities.
The same applies for international equities.

Intemnational equity assets are held via a trust which invests In a number of different countries. The ssnsitivity for each individual country is small
£0 & breakdown by country has not been provided.

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consistently over the two
reporting periods included in the analysis.

(i} Other price

Other price sensitivity includas sensitivity 1o unit price fluctuations. The unit prica risk is the risk that the falr value of investments in property fund
units will decrease as a result of changes In the value of these units. The Company holds all of its investments In property securities at fair value
through profit or loss.

The table below demonstrates the impact of a 10% movement in the value of property funds & international equities on the profit after tax and
equity of thea Company. The potentlal impect is essumed as at the reporting date.

2010 2009
impact on impact on
profit after tax oquity profit after tex equity

$000 $000 §000 $000
Chengo in veriables
+10% property funds 836 836 803 803
-10% property funds (836) (838) {803) (803)
+10% in International equities 287 287 366 366
-10% in internationol equities (287) {287) {366) (366)

The risks assumed and methods used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has been applied consisiently over the two
reporting period included in the analysis.
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICEES
For the year ended 30 September 2010

18.  Financial Instruments by category

The analysis of financial assets and llabiities into thelr categories and classes is set out in the folowing tables:

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Relnsurence recoveries receivable
Outstanding premiums ond trade receivables
Unsettied investments sale

Related party recelvable

Other recelvables

Loans on policy

Derivative financial assets
Investment In listad equity securities
Fixed Interest securities

Property securities

Totel financial assets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurance recoveries recelvable
Outstanding premiums and trade receivables
Unsettled investments sale

Related party receivable

Loans on policy

Derivative financial assets
investment In listed equity securities
Fixed Interest securities

Property securlties

Tots! financlel assets

Uabilittes

Reinsurance payables

Unsettied investment purchases
Intercompany payables

Other payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Life investment contract llabilities
FuturePlan Debenture

Total financial Nabifities

Liabilittes

Relinsurance payebles

Unsettied investment purchases
intercompany payables

COther payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Life investment contract Rabilities
FuturePlan Debenture

Total financial liabitties

30 September 2010
Fair value through profit or foss
Total Loans and Held to
Recelvables maturity
Designated  Held for trading
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
13,617 13,617 - - v
4,404 4,404 - = s
26,503 26,503 “ - Gk
523 523 - . -
2,649 2,649 % % =
366 366 a i z
5610 5,610 - ) -
63,019 ” - - 63,019
216,714 » - 216,714 -
362,347 . * 362,347 &
76,335 - & 76,335 i
772,087 53672 - 655,396 63,019
30 Saptember 2009
Falr value through profit or |
Total Loans and Held to Vel through profit or foss
Recelvables maturity
Designated  Held for trading
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2,739 2,739 - - -
2,513 2,513 . - -
29,480 29,480 - . .
346 346 E & -
2,300 2,300 B - -
5,712 5,712 “ : -
46,045 B - - 46,085
204,462 - . 204,462 -
421,693 . - 421,693 -
71,363 - - 71,363 -
786,653 43,090 - 697,518 46,045
30 September 2010
Financis)
Fair value through profit or loss tabikitias
Oesignated  Held for trading atamortised
TU;._! cost
4000 $000 $000 $000
1,962 - * 1,962
480 - = 480
31,076 - - 31,076
3,341 . - 3,341
1,652 ] 1,652 S
31,759 31,759 © =
70,270 31,759 1,652 36,859
30 September 2009
Financial
Fair value through profit or loss Habilities
at amortised
De: ted  Held for tradi
Total s . ' " cost
$000 $000 $000 $000
2,519 - - 2,519
48 . - 248
3,733 - ES 3,733
2,911 . B 2,911
20,634 - 20,634 -
32,651 - 32,651 -
22,745 - - 22,745
85441 = 53,285 32,156
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

20. Capital risk management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to ensure that its level of capital is sufficient to enable it to continue as a
going concemn in order to provide returns for sharehoiders and benefits for other stakeholders of the Company.

The Company’s capital resources are made up of ordinary equity.

2010 2009

$000 $000
TOWER Life {N.2.) Limited shareholder equity 25,780 30,246
Total capital resources B 25.100 solm

The Company measures the adequacy of its capital against published capital standards. Refer to Note 17 (c): Solvency
requirements of life funds. The Company's caplital management strategy s incorporated within the TOWER Limited Group's
capital management strategy which, in turn, forms part of the Group's broader strategic planning process oversesen by the
Group Audit and Compliance Committee.

21. Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009
{a) Raconclliation of cash at the end of the year $000 $000
Cash at bank and in hand 13,617 2,739
Total cash and cash equivalents 13,617 2,739
(b} Raconciliation of profit for the period to net cash flows from operating activities
Profit attributable to shareholders 4,758 3,942
Add/(less) non cash items
Impairment of Assets 57 -
Change in life insurance and life investment contract liabilities (4,044) (24,204)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on investments (56,640) 8,662
Decrease in deferred tax 21,366 2,347
(39,261) (13,195)
Add/(less) movements in working capital relating to operating activities
Dscrease/{increase) in receivables 410 (3.810)
Increase in payables 26,969 3,666
{Increase)/decrease In taxation (15,168) 2,353
12,211 2,209
Add/{less) other Items classified as Investing/financing activities
Loss on repayment of FuturePlan Debenture 2,276 -
2,276 -
Net cash outfiows from operating activities {20,018) (7,044)

22. Contingont liabilities
The Company had no material contingent liabilities at balance date (2009: nil)

23. Capital commitments
The Company had no material capital commitments at balance date (2009: nil)
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TOWER LIFE (N.2.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yaar ended 30 Saptamber 2010

24.  Transactions with reisted partiss
The Company le @ wholly ownod subsidiary of TOWER Health and Life Limiied. The ultimate owner of TOWER Health and Life Limited is TOWER Limited. During the year TOWER Life (N.Z.)
Limted was sold by TOWER Managad Funds Limited to TOWER Health and L¥e Limited.

d party bie and pay bal of the Company st the reporting date wers as follows:

Rulated party 2010 2008 Nature of Ralationship Type of Transactions
NZSO00 NZ§000

TOWER Heaith and Life Limited (105} +  Parent Operating expenses
TOWER Health and Life Limied (6.087) .+ Parent irterest
TOWER Hoalth and Life Limited (6,832) + Parent Taxkss
TOWER Asset Management Limited {1,709) (697) Fefiow subsidlary Operating expenges
TOWER Managed Funds Limited ®z27) (1,278) Feliow subsidlary Operating expenses
TOWER Managed Funds Investments Limited 549) {549) Fellow subsidiary Operating expenses
TOWER Medical insurgnce Limited (1,376) - Fellow subsidiary Tax ksses
TOWER New Zealand Limied {2.368) - Felow subsidiary Tax losses
TOWER New Zealand Limited {620} 2,300 Felow subsidlery LoaniAdvance
TOWER New Zeatand Limiied {84 = Felow subsidiary Operaling expenses
TOWER Limited {7,504) = Uitimete parent Tax iosses
TOWER Limited 2,812 ~ Litimate parent Interast
TOWER Financial Servicas Group Limited (7.007) 123 Parent of TOWER Heaith & Life Losn/Advance
TOWER Insurance Limited 2,638 = Follow subsidlary Tax fains

The Comnpany enters into transactions with its related partias in the nornal course of business. Transactions during the yesr included partial sattiement of intercompany batances and intercompany
dividends as shown beiow:

Related party 2010 2000 Nature of Reiationship Type of Transactions
NZR00D  N2$000

TOWER Health and Lfe Liied 4,700) - Parent Dividend

TOWER Hegith and L¥e Limited (8.087) « Parent Interast

TOWER Health and Life Limited (8,532) + Parent Tex kisses

TOWER Hoalth and LNe Limited (384) -« Parent Operating sxpenses

TOWER Asset Management Limited {3,101) {3,117) Feliow subsidiary Investment management fess

TOWER Mananed Funds Limied (2.686) (9,776) Fellow subsidlary Operating expenses

TOWER Managed Funds Limiied {4,624) - Fellow subsidiary Dividand

TOWER New Zealand Limited (2,721) - Fellow subsidiary Operating expensas

TOWER New Zealand Limited (2,388} = Fellow subsidlary Tax losses

TOWER New Zoaiand Limited {3,:304) - Fellow subsidlary Advances

TOWER Financlat Services Group Limited {1,753) - Limited Intaragt

TOWER Financia) Ssevices Group Limited {12,831) Limited Tax bosses

TOWER Financial Services Group Limited 1,165 Limited Loan

TOWER Insurance Limited 2,638 - Fellow subsidiary Tax lnsses

TOWER Limited (7.504) = Uttimete parent Tax losses

TOWER Medical insurance Limited (1.378) ~  Fellow subskiiary Tax fosses

25. Key management personnal compensation
TOWER New Zusland Limiad end TOWER Megith and Life Limited paid all key f on behalf of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited for the year ended 30 September

26. Loans to key menagement personne!
Thare have been no loens made to direciors and other key manaegement personnel of the Company, including their personally related parties (2008: NK).

27.  Other transactions with key management personnel
Key management also hold various policies and accounts with TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited. These are operated in the nommal course of business on nomal customer terms.

28. Guarantesd retums on funds invested - life
“The Company gusranises cepitel il by policyhald ther with any declared dividends for the following funds. At balance date the net assats of these funds were:
2010 2009
S000 _  geto
Capital Preservation Fund - 29,123
Capitel Protected Plan 7.452 8,482
VITAL 1,466 1,642
Total se18 39297
29.  Investment inked and non-investment linked businsss
Invastment Non- Investment inked Non-investment
linked  investment Enked
Hnked
2010 2010 2009 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Invesiment assets 31,750 700,273 32,651 747,118
Other assets - 11,667 - 28448
Policyholder Eablilties (31,768)  (668,787) (32,661} (688,622)
Other liablities - s (66.508)
Net assets - 25780 -
Retained earnings - TEro0 - %
Net premium income - 20,688 - 23,534
Investment income 2,887 105,062 37 28,601
Net clakns expense - {54,133) - (50,464)
Other operating expenses (164) {10,344) (208) (14,448)
Change in policyholder liabllitiss _ [23e8)  (25740) 117 1
Profitiiloss) before taxation 535 35,833 138 2,513
Taxation crecitiaxpense) (222) {31,388) 17 (4,788)
Frofit atter taxation i3 4445 215 3,721
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TOWER LIFE (N.Z.) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 September 2010

30. Impact of amended NZ IFRS
(a) Standards, amendments and Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effectlve and have not been
early adopted by the Company.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 Octobsr 2010 or later periods, and the Group has not early adopted
them:

NZ IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2013). The standard is the first step in replacing NZ IAS 39
and establishes two primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and fair value, with classification
depending on an entity's business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company
Is in the process of evaluating the potential effect of this standard.

IAS 24, 'Related party disclosures’ (effective from 1 January 2011). The revised standard amends the definition of a related
party. The Company is in the process of evaluating the potential effect of this standard.

IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments’ {effective refrospectively from 1 January 2011). The amendment emphasises the interaction
between quantitative and qualltative disclosures about the nature and extent of risks associated with financial instruments.
The Company will apply the IFRS 7 amendments from 1 October 2010.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing effective 2010 or early adopted by the Company.

The Company has adopted the following new applicable and amended IFRS's as of the 1 October 2009:

NZ IAS 1 {(Amendment) 'Presentation of financial statements’ (effective from 1 January 2008). The revised NZ IAS 1
requires an entity to present all owner changes in equity, separately from non-owner changes in equity, in a statement of
changes in equity.

All non-owner changes in equity {i.e. comprehensive income) are required to be presented in one statement of
comprehensive income or two statements (an income statement and a statement of comprehensive income). Components
of comprehensive income are not permitted to be presented in the statement of changes in equity. The change in
accounting policy has only impacted presentation aspects.

NZ IFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ (effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment requires
disciosure of all the level of the fair value hierarchy into which fair value measurements are categorised based on a three
level fair value hierarchy for financial instruments. In addition, the amendment provides further clarification around liquidity
risk disclosures and additional quantitative disclosures based on liquidity risk of financial liabilites. The change in
accounting policy has only resulted in additional disclosures,

31. Subsequent events
There were no events subsequent to balance date that require adjustment or disclosure within the financial statements.

32. Company Information

TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited is a profit oriented entity incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. Its registered office and
principal place of business is: Level 11, 22 Fanshawe Street, Auckland New Zealand.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
188 Quay Strest
Private Bag 92162
Auckland 1142
New Zealand
: y Telephone +64 9 355 8000
Independent Auditors’ Report Fasimile +64 B 955 8001

to the shareholder of TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited WWW.pwe.com/nz

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of TOWER Lite (N.Z.) Limited on pages 3 to 40,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 September 2010, the statement of comprehensive
income, staternent of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financlal statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of the
matters to which they relate and for such internal controls as the Directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (New Zealand)
and international Standards on Auditing. These standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers the intemnal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

We have no relationship with, or interest in, TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited other than in our
capacities as auditors and providers of other assurance, advisory and taxation services. These
matiers have not impaired our independence as auditor of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TOWER Life (N.Z.) Limited

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 3 to 40
(i) comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
(i) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and
(iit) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
ngii;.)tember 2010, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also report in accordance with sections 16 of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. In relation
to our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2010:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and

(i) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far
as appears from an examination of those records.

Restriction on Distribution or Use

This report is made solely to the Company's shareholder in accordance with Section 205(1) of
the Companies Act 1993. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s shareholder those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholder for
our audit work, for this repon, or for the opinions we have formed.

"f&u;}:&’u»an

Chartered Accountants Auckland
23 December 2010



